GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Board of Directors

Wednesday, October 28, 2009
8:00 a.m. - 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe, NW - Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA
L Call to Order

Convention IL. 2009 International Wine & Food Festival — Henri Boucher, ShowSpan
Arena
Authority III.  Approval of September 23, 2009, Minutes Action
Steven Heacock, IV.  Committee Reports

Chairman A. Operations Committee Information
Birgit Klohs i CVB Report Information
Clif Charles B. Finance Committee
Gary Mclnerney i SMG September 2009 Financial Statements - Action
George Heartwell DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Joseph Tomessll ii. CAA September 2009 Financial Statements Action
Lew Chamberlin iii.  Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and Action

for the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008
iv. First Quarter Consolidated Budget Information

Summary/Financial Report
V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information
VI.  Public Comment
VII. Adjournment

VIII. Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, December 9, 2009 *

* NOTE MEETING DATE

=t
J
VAN ANDEL
ARENA EVOSPLACE
-

DeVos Places®
\]/%r(\) AF:ldtzlnAV:/eer;?@ 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590

8



Item III

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, September 23, 2009

L. Call to Order

Steven R. Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Birgit Klohs,
Secretary/Treasurer, recorded the meeting minutes. Chair Heacock announced that the Board

would be going into closed session after public comment.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairperson
Lew Chamberlin
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney
Joe Tomaselli

Members Absent: George Heartwell

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Richard Glaser Dickinson Wright
George Helmstead CVB
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Doug Small CVB
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County

II. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the August 26,
2009, meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried

unanimously.

II1. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that the Committee lacked a quorum at its last meeting and was unable to take
action. The Ringling Brothers Circus will be coming to the Arena for 6 performances at the end of the
month. The Arena will feature the largest artist for ArtPrize by having a circus elephant paint the Van
Andel Arena® bus. DeVos Place® and the Amway are co-hosting a public ArtPrize reception on



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 23, 2009 -2

September 24. The competition is receiving national press coverage in publications such as the Seattle
Times and New York Times. Mr. MacKeigan presented a budget amendment to alter the capital plan to
allow an expenditure of $200,000 for the installation of a center-hung LED board and expansion of the
concourse would be added as a capital item with a not-to-exceed amount of $1,000,000. SMG will
provide a recommendation on concourse expansion once all due diligence has been completed. The
amendment will not alter the budget financially. The Committee was supportive of the budget
amendment and felt there is a need for some change.

Mr. Helmstead provided a brief overview of recent sales activities, marketing efforts, and major bid
presentations. The CVB hosted a series of site visits including the National Table Tennis Association,
National Coalition of Black Meeting Planners, and Fraternal Order of Eagles. The CVB received a
verbal definite from DECA following its July site visit. The CVB has booked two judo championships
and two meetings for Motor Maids. Staff will attend Rejuvenate, a competitor of RCMA, in November
for the first time.

b. Finance Committee.
i. SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended August 31, 2009. After review and
discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

il. CAA Financial Statements

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements for
the period ended August 31, 2009. After review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

iii FY 2010 Budget Amendment

Mr. MacKeigan presented a formal recommendation for an amendment to the FY 2010 capital budget to
reallocate $1.2 million in funds. Mr. MacKeigan recommended that the CAA approve a budget
amendment that would allow an expenditure of $200,000 for the installation of a center-hung LED board

and expansion of the concourse would be added as a capital item with a not-to-exceed amount of
$1,000,000.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the amendment to the FY 2010
capital budget as recommended. The motion carried unanimously.

Iv. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

V. Public Comment

None.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 23, 2009 -3

VI.  Closed Session

Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to go into closed session to consult with legal
counsel regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation. Roll call vote:

Chair Heacock-yes; Vice Chair Tomaselli-yes; Secretary/Treasurer Klohs-yes; Mr. Chamberlin-yes; and
Myr. Mclnerney- yes. The motion carried unanimously.

The Board commenced the closed session at 8:35 a.m.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to go back into open session. The motion
carried unanimously.

Closed session concluded at 9:05 a.m.

VII. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, October 28, 2009, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:08 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Item IV.B.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2010

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET

YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
93 458 551 564 (13)
54,7113 465,358 520,071 553,300 (33,229)
369,524 1,896,357 2,265,881 2,263,000 2,881
254,572 1,965,300 2,219,872 2,277,255 (57,383)
624,096 3,861,657 4,485,753 4,540,255 (54,502)
21,119 138,470 159,589 172,500 (12,911)
645,215 4,000,127 4,645,342 4,712,755 (67,413)
31,974 136,250 168,224 173,304 5,080
51,714 165,360 217,074 224,296 7,222
9,524 88,463 97,987 107,726 9,739
304,707 1,154,847 1,459,554 1,529,250 69,696
195,964 688,357 884,321 889,147 4,826

18,128 54,442 72,570 72,570 .
81,697 266,402 348,099 346,620 (1,479)
386,807 1,788,357 2,175,164 2,209,432 34,268
1,080,515 4342478 5,422,993 5,552,345 129,352
(435,300) (342,351) (777,651) (839,590) 61,939

- 0 -
(435,300) (342,351) (177,651) (839,590) 61,939

DeVos Place finished the first quarter in a favorable position overall
to budget, however, a small shortfall in revenue with a larger offset

to expenses.

The forecast remains close to the original budget as the events appear

to be there, however, still remaining cautious on ancillary income. Expenses
have come in well ahead, however, will know more in the next few months
related to Utilities which the bulk of the savings is coming from.




DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending September 30, 2009
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

September September September
Actual Budget FY 2009
28 30 51
10,835 13,450 35,514
$55,847 $56,699 $135,685
43,762 79,086 162,094
8,942 6,583 13,199
(383,985) (462,698) (437,641)
($275,434) ($320,330) ($126,663)
YTD 2010 YTD 2010 YTD 2009
Actual Budget Prior Year
93 98 126
54,713 61,442 72,872
$369,524 $323,658 $323,787
254,572 363,286 305,951
21,119 28,249 37,046
(1,080,515) (1,388,095) (1,170,486)
($435,300) ($672,902) ($503,702)

Event income came in consistent with budget.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell short of budget for the month, most of the shortfall coming from

lower than expected attendance on the banquet events.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses ended favorably to budget with the bulk of the savings coming in utilities.




DeVos Place
Income Statement

For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2009

Current Month  Current Month CumrentMonth  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $55,748 $65,375 ($9,627) $149,804 $361,800 $370,732 ($8,932) $355,027
Service Revenue 35,491 69,282 (33,791) 148,197 283,689 331,394 (47,705) 323,526
Service Expenses (35,392) (77,958) 42,566 (162,316) (275,965) (378,468) 102,503 (354,766)
Total Direct Event Income 55,847 56,699 (852) 135,685 369,524 323,658 45,866 323,787
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 969 2,464 (1,495) 4,489 11,591 17,936 (6,345) 11,716
F&B Catering 22,330 36,511 (14,181) 68,715 91,086 136,546 (45,460) 138,788
Novelty Sales 0 145 (145) 1,277 3,648 2,965 683 3,192
Booth Cleaning 1,509 2,358 (849) 10,674 13,086 23,812 (10,726) 16,349
Telephone/Long Distance 0 0 0 1,463 563 2,472 (1,909) 1,463
Electrical Services 4,948 14,640 (9,692) 31,231 31,108 73,817 (42,709) 44,416
Audio Visual 9,377 11,214 {1,837) 31,349 70,379 65,119 5,260 70,435
Internet Services (631) 1,401 (2,032) 966 10,786 12,067 (1,281) (2,793)
Equipment Rental 5,260 10,353 (5,093) 11,930 22,325 28,552 (6,227) 22,385
Total Ancillary Income 43,762 79,086 (35,329) 162,094 254,572 363,286 (108,714) 305,951
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 6,036 3,750 2,286 9,862 14,031 19,750 (5,719) 27,956
Total Other Event Income 6,036 3,750 2,286 9,862 14,031 19,750 (5,719) 27,956
Total Event Income 105,645 139,535 (33,890) 307,641 638,127 706,694 (68,567) 657,694
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 1,733 2,000 (267) 2,600 5,200 6,000 (800) 7,800
Other Income 1,173 833 340 737 1,888 2,499 ®11) 1,290
Total Other Operating Income 2,906 2,833 73 3,337 7,088 8,499 (1,411) 9,090
Adjusted Gross Income 108,551 142,368 (33,817) 310,978 645,215 715,193 (69,978) 666,784
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 163,600 223,027 (59,427) 215,072 559,645 669,082 (109,437) 582,969
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 38,124 61,340 (23,216) 60,467 133,109 184,020 (50,911) 161,579
Labor Allocations to Events (46,084) (119,103) 73,019 (127,987) (262,748) (357,309) 94,561 (291,747)
Net Salaries and Benefits 156,640 165,264 (9,624) 147,552 430,006 495,793 (65,787) 452,801
Contracted Services 21,261 21,200 61 28,097 67,421 63,600 3,821 89,334
General and Administrative 12,278 28,768 (16,490) 22,468 50,534 86,304 (35,770) 74,702
Operations 25,203 11,823 13,380 25,693 33,202 35,469 (2,267) 30,377
Repair and Maintenance 41,930 41,941 (11) 62,282 103,944 125,823 (21,879) 135,837
Operational Supplies 15,969 21,500 (5,531) 12,090 43,749 64,500 (20,751) 37,690
Insurance 11,450 17,463 (6,013) 15,670 38,092 52,389 (14,297) 41,186
Utilities 87,031 141,516 (54,485) 110,566 273,899 424,548 (150,649) 268,891
SMG Management Fees 13,223 13,223 0 13,223 39,668 39,669 1) 39,668
Total Operating Expenses 383,985 462,698 (78,713) 437,641 1,080,515 1,388,095 (307,580) 1,170,486
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (275,434) {320,330) 44,896 (126,663) (435,300) (672,902) 237,602 (503,702)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) (275,434) (320,330) 44,896 (126,663) (435,300) (672,902) 237,602 (503,702)

4



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended September 30, 2009

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 29 35 27,580 26,992 344,513 399,503
Consumer/Gated Shows 2 2 1,905 5,450 16,032 17,572
Devos Performance Hall 25 18 14,951 18,500 131,612 132,962
Banquets 4 4 2,250 3,000 38,921 29,444
Meetings 26 32 7,307 5,500 99,491 83,214
Other 7 7 720 2,000 7,557 43,459
GRAND TOTALS 93 98 54,713 61,442 638,126 706,154
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 31.18% 35.71% 50.41% 43.93% 53.99% 56.57%
Consumer/Gated Shows 2.15% 2.04% 3.48% 8.87% 2.51% 2.49%
Devos Performance Hall 26.88% 18.37% 27.33% 30.11% 20.62% 18.83%
Ballroom Exclusive 430% 4.08% 4.11% 4.88% 6.10% 4.17%
Meetings 27.96% 32.65% 13.36% 8.95% 15.59% 11.78%

Other 7.53% 7.14% 1.32% 3.26% 1.18% 6.15%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

CY Funds Remitted to CAA
CY Exp. Paid Directly by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet

For the Thrge Months Ending September 30, 2009

ASSETS
751,296
223,500
84,610
$1,059,406
$1,059,406
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(156,648)
246,843
54,232
528,508
$672,936
(150,000)
254,473
717,297
(435,300)
$386,470
$1,059,406




SMG - DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended September 30, 2009

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 23,299
Ticketing 14,793
Merchandise -
Decorating 1,508
Audio/Visual 14,818
Van Andel Arena 42,291
Operating 43,456
Over 30 Days 35,241
Over 60 Days 32,960
Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions 5,736
Paragon Leather 2,110
Saigon Entertainment 5,002
Grinder Promotions 2,286

Total Accounts Receivable 223,500



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2009
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,156,176 (777,651) 378,525 835,421
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,156,176 (777,651) (321,475) 135,421

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 317,343
Incentive Fee

Revenue 4,999,609 4,645,342 9,644,951 9,591,113

Benchmark Revenue 4,750,000 4,150,000 8,900,000 8,800,000

Revenue Excess 249,609 495,342 744,951 791,113

Incentive Fee ** - - - 212,334
Total SMG Management Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 529,677

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity

Item IV.B.1.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2010

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 11 92 103 105 (2)
ATTENDANCE 59,448 488,354 547,802 559,650 (11,848)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 157,967 1,235,698 1,393,665 1,423,745 (30,080)
ANCILLARY INCOME 143,726 966,874 1,110,600 1,113,577 (2,977)
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 301,693 2,202,572 2,504,265 2,537,322 (33,057)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 579,886 1,915,458 2,495,344 2,467,390 27,954
TOTAL INCOME 881,579 4,118,030 4,999,609 5,004,712 (5,103)
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 45,415 143,451 188,866 187,074 (1,792)
FINANCE 43,086 178,457 221,543 233,925 12,382
MARKETING 63,992 201,876 265,868 275,280 9,412
OPERATIONS 322,071 1,299,302 1,621,373 1,644,844 23,471
BOX OFFICE 24,526 115,685 140,211 144,138 3,927
LUXURY SEATING 19,139 66,654 86,793 86,751 958
SKYWALK ADMIN 6,103 17,853 23,956 23,956 -
OVERHEAD 291,136 1,004,687 1,295,823 1,246,071 (49,752)

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 815,468 3,027,965 3,843,433 3,842,039 (1,394)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 66,111 1,090,065 1,156,176 1,162,673 (6,497)
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 0 - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 66,111 1,090,065 1,166,176 1,162,673 (6,497)

Comments:

September concludes a successful first quarter of the fiscal year
for the Arena as it played host to 3 very strong selling concerts, and General Mag U
the annual Circus play that while down from budget, held up :

better than in other markets.

The forecast remains relatively unchanged from budget as revenue
through the first quarter has been consistent overall, and the positive

variance on expense will begin to shrink over the next quarter.

A LA 24"

Director of Finance




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending September 30, 2009
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

EVENT INCOME

September September September
Actual Budget FY 2009
7 8 9
32,012 30,000 42,189
$52,591 $47,298 96,054
53,769 53,771 91,568
196,794 186,575 236,930
(311,087) (320,171) (319,250)
($7,933) ($32,527) $105,302
YTD 2010 YTD 2010 YTD 2009
Actual Budget Prior Year
11 13 13
59,448 49,650 66,754
$157,967 $209,971 175,458
143,726 136,842 169,479
579,886 552,820 639,554
(815,468) (960,513) (912,959)
$66,111 ($60,880) $71,532

Event income came in slightly ahead of budget for the month on the strength of the American
Idol concert. Most dates on their tour where within 4-5% of where they were at last year, and

our date was up over 20%.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in right at expected levels for the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses were consistent with budget overall.




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement

For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2009

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Year to Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $100,331 $95,052 5,279 $171,891 $189,895 $244,461 (54,566) $228,466
Service Revenue 60,781 66,676 (5,895) 102,794 179,795 267,530 (87,735) 283,718
Service Expenses (108,521) (114,430) 5,909 (178,631) (211,723) (302,020) 90,297 (336,726)
Total Direct Event Income 52,591 47,298 5,293 96,054 157,967 209,971 (52,004) 175,458
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 46,027 47,856 (1,829) 64,333 120,115 106,724 13,391 124,169
F&B Catering 2,923 2,749 174 15,297 11,064 11,788 (724) 21,359
Novelty Sales 4,819 3,166 1,653 11,844 12,547 18,330 (5,783) 23,857
Booth Cleaning 0 0 0 94 0 0 0 94
Total Ancillary Income 53,769 53,771 2) 91,568 143,726 136,842 6,884 169,479
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 15,028 10,385 4,643 32,601 46,462 41,540 4,922 68,036
Total Other Event Income 15,028 10,385 4,643 32,601 46,462 41,540 4,922 68,036
Total Event Income 121,388 111,454 9,934 220,223 348,155 388,353 (40,198) 412,973
Other Operating iIncome
Luxury Box Agreements 114,924 88,606 26,318 141,638 349,349 248,528 100,821 386,883
Club Seat Agreements 0 26,500 (26,500) 0 0 79,500 (79,500) 0
Advertising 61,017 54,167 6,850 54,813 168,534 162,501 6,033 162,125
Other Income 5,825 6,917 (1,092) 7,878 15,541 20,751 (5,210) 22,510
Total Other Operating Income 181,766 176,190 5,576 204,329 533,424 511,280 22,144 571,518
Adjusted Gross Income 303,154 287,644 16,510 424,552 881,579 899,633 (18,054) 984,491
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 141,793 158,969 (17,176) 149,579 380,420 476,907 (96,487) 453,042
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 32,780 46,429 (13,649) 39,293 92,497 139,287 (46,790) 112,000
Labor Allocations to Events (46,578) (71,669) 25,091 (63,953) (127,001) (215,007) 88,006 (161,922)
Net Salaries and Benefits 127,995 133,729 (5,734) 124,919 345,916 401,187 (55,271) 403,120
Contracted Services 20,987 21,300 (313) 28,858 57,222 63,800 (6,678) 84,219
General and Administrative 26,467 27,965 (1,498) 24,354 66,289 83,895 (17,606) 68,035
Operations 1,215 5,183 (3,968) 3,168 4,074 15,549 (11,475) 9,085
Repair and Maintenance 32,119 18,662 13,457 27,570 50,317 55,986 (5,669) 56,755
Operational Supplies 10,506 18,342 (7,836) 15,936 23,089 55,026 (31,937) 43,640
Insurance 8,404 2,667 5,737 9,520 18,800 8,001 10,799 19,089
Utilities 70,171 79,100 (8,929) 71,702 210,093 237,300 (27,207) 189,348
SMG Management Fees 13,223 13,223 0 13,223 39,668 39,669 1) 39,668
Total Operating Expenses 311,087 320,171 (9,084) 319,250 815,468 960,513 {145,045) 912,959
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (7,933) (32,527) 24,594 105,302 66,111 (60,880) 126,991 71,532
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net income(Loss) (7,933) (32,527) 24,594 105,302 66,111 (60,880) 126,991 71,532




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
Month Ending September 30, 2009

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Family Show 6 7 22,059 23,000 46,843 60,396
Sporting Event 1 1 8,393 1,500 24,006 11,625
Concert 3 4 28,721 28,000 340,442 361,197
Team Home Games
Other 1 1 275 150 2,636 2,975
GRAND TOTALS 11 13 59,448 52,650 413,927 436,193
As Percentage of Overall
Family Show 54.55% 53.85% 37.11% 43.68% 11.32% 13.85%
Sporting Event 9.09% 7.69% 14.12% 2.85% 5.80% 2.67%
Concert 27.27% 30.77% 48.31% 53.18% 82.25% 82.81%
Team Home Games 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Other 9.09% 7.69% 0.46% 0.28% 0.64% 0.68%



Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet

For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2009

Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

CY Funds Remitted to CAA
CY Exp. Paid Directly by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

4,723,697
698,537
174,069
$5,596,303
$5,596,303
224,557
948,026
1,207,493
2,403,045
$4,873,120
0
194,584
462,489
66,110
$723,183
$5,596,303




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending September 30, 2009

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 75,754

Ticketing 390,824

Merchandise -

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (42,291)

Operating 173,263
Over 30 Days 32,487
Over 60 Days 68,500
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 698,537



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2009
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,156,176 (777,651) 378,525 835,421
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,156,176 (777,651) (321,475) 135,421

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 317,343
Incentive Fee

Revenue 4,999,609 4,645,342 9,644,951 9,591,113

Benchmark Revenue 4,750,000 4,150,000 8,900,000 8,800,000

Revenue Excess 249,609 495,342 744,951 791,113

Incentive Fee ** - - - 212,334
Total SMG Management Fee 158,672 158,671 317,343 529,677

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.B.ii.

GRAND RAPID
R R e
e AN aonin: & e
Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: October 23, 2009
Convention Re: CAA Financial Statements
Arena
Avthority
The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
Steven Heacock, September 30, 2009:
Choirman
Birgit Klohs 1050: Operations 1070: Kent County Operating
Clit Charles
Gary Mclnerney Beginning Balance $ 416,388.57 $22,852,621.49
George Heartwell Cleared Transactions - -308.887.21 -700,303.36
Joseph Tomasell Cleared Balance 107,501.36 22,152,317.63
tew Chamberlin Uncleared Transactions -2,577.11 -0-

Register Balance $ 10492425 22 17.63

1. Land lease, parking revenues, parking management, and pedestrian safety are
behind schedule due to staff and timing issues.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at
742-6594 or swaddell@smggr.com. Thank you.

VAN ANDEL

o DEVOSPLACE
I A ® DeVos Place®

V%r(\) ?:ﬂ?}n \/|\’/eers‘:cJ 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233

616.742.6600 616.742.6500

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590




10:34 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10/09/09 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2009
Sep 30, 09
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG 5,310,756.10
1050 - Operations - Cash B 104,924.25
Total Checking/Savings 5,415,680.35

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating
1200 - Accounts Receivable
1300 - Prepaid Expenses -

1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation
Original Cost

Total Buildings & Structures

Equip
Depreciation
Original Cost

Total Equip
Vehicles
Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales
2220 - Advance deposits
2500 - Deferred facility income

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

22,152,317.63
2,115,599.17
204,866.35
-150,001.07

24,322,782.08

20,738,462.43

-83,557.38
322,431.00

238,873.62

-682,930.97
1,063,917.04

380,986.07
_43,914.30
663,773.99

30,402,236.42

50,044.05
706,647.17

756,691.22

876,270.61
3,033,935.73
277,635.00
1,233,686.74

5,421,528.08

6,178,219.30

6,178,219.30

37,035,584 .45
-12,045,983.91
-765,583.42

24,224,017.12

30,402,236.42




10:35 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10/09/08
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6101 - Advertising/Promo/Publicity
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through September 2009

Jut - Sep 09 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
39,696.14 168,750.00 -129,053.86 23.5%
0.00 33,687.75 -33,687.75 0.0%
50,242.00 214,403.25 -164,161.25 23.4%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
89,938.14 416,841.00 -326,902.86 21.6%
3,132.64 9,500.06 -6,367.42 33.0%
65,525.50 8,750.06 56,775.44 748.9%
68,658.14 18,250.12 50,408.02 376.2%
29,541.66 92,250.00 -62,708.34 32.0%
5,471.31 24,000.00 -18,528.69 22.8%
17,539.00 67,162.78 -49,623.78 26.1%

188.55 0.00 188.55 100.0%

279.99 0.00 279.99 100.0%
22,903.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9,971.66 2,500.03 7,471.63 398.9%
1,028.59 1,250.06 -221.47 82.3%

34,371.79 3,750.09 30,621.70 916.6%
0.00 2,500.03 -2,500.03 0.0%
244,057.98 486,300.00 -242,242.02 50.2%
0.00 5,000.06 -5,000.06 0.0%
309,107.33 308,000.06 1,107.27 100.4%

783.11 4,500.00 -3,716.89 17.4%
94,758.07 282,225.00 -187,466.93 33.6%
20,309.85 28,125.00 -7,815.15 72.2%

424,958.36 622,850.06 -197,891.70 68.2%

24,190.52 16,456.31 7,734.24 147.0%

6,732.80 5,304.28 1,428.52 126.9%
30,923.32 21,760.59 9,162.73 142.1%
855,521.56 1,343,823.73 -488,302.17 63.7%
-765,583.42 -926,982.73 161,399.31 82.6%




11:00 AM

10/09/09
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Reptacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

July through September 2009

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

Jul - Sep 09 Jul - Sep 08 $ Change % Change
39,696.14 132,859.52 -93,163.38 -70.1%
0.00 56,226.35 -56,226.35 -100.0%
50,242.00 105,209.25 -54,967.25 -52.3%
0.00 99,920.00 -99,920.00 -100.0%
89,938.14 394,215.12 -304,276.98 -77.2%
3,132.64 2,527.40 605.24 24.0%
65,525.50 1,309.15 64,216.35 4,905.2%
68,658.14 3,836.55 64,821.59 1,689.6%
29,541.66 25,000.00 4,541.66 18.2%
5,471.31 3,447.46 2,023.85 58.7%
17,539.00 40,664.00 -23,125.00 -56.9%
188.55 20.00 168.55 842.8%
279.99 0.00 279.99 100.0%
22,803.00 50.00 22,853.00 45,706.0%
9,971.66 1,381.31 8,590.35 621.9%
1,028.59 0.00 1,028.59 100.0%
34,371.79 1,451.31 32,920.48 2,268.3%
244,057.98 201,423.19 42,634.79 21.2%
0.00 -21,326.81 21,326.81 100.0%
309,107.33 300,931.52 8,175.81 2.7%
783.11 1,555.67 -772.56 -49.7%
94,758.07 50,442.80 44,315.27 87.9%
20,309.85 20,349.06 -39.21 -0.2%
424,058.36 373,279.05 51,679.31 13.8%
24,190.52 18,354.39 5,836.13 31.8%
6,732.80 1,824.94 4,907.86 268.9%
30,923.32 20,179.33 10,743.99 53.2%
855,521.56 647,954.08 207,567.48 32.0%
-765,583.42 -253,738.96 -511,844.46 -201.7%




DeVos Place, as
Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements as of and
for the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Item IV.B.iii.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008:

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising From Activities
Managed by SMG

Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising From Activities Managed by SMG

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements

Page

69



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

DeVos Place, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of DeVos Place, as managed by
SMG, (“SMG-DeVos Place”) as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and for the years then ended, as listed in the
table of contents. These special-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of
SMG-DeVos Place. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special-purpose financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the special-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of SMG-DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the special-purpose financial statements, assessing the accounting principles and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall special-purpose financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to present the assets, liabilities,
amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of DeVos Place
arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete presentation of
DeVos Place’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SMG-DeVos Place as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-DeVos Place and

officials of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

itoitts ¢ Trorche o2?

September 28, 2009



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

AS OF JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow

Accounts receivable — net of allowances of $32,000 in

2009 and 2008
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance ticket sales

Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2009 2008
$ 740,117 $ 524,858
210,623 105,264
588,856 467,204
74,171 107,867
$1,613,767 $1,205,193
$ 15623 $ 53,683
385,740 376,700
210,623 105,264
271,135 283,972
57,632 72,032
940,753 891,651
673,014 313,542
$1,613,767 $1,205,193




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events

Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Decorating
Electrical
Equipment rental
Other

Total net ancillary revenues

Total events and net ancillary revenues

Other — including interest income of $3,086 and $11,497
in 2009 and 2008, respectively

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES, BEFORE INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2009 2008
$2,376,311  $2,601,414
810,185 845,482
232,317 341,364
405,283 468,555
423,862 422,755
50,639 57,665
1,922,286 2,135,821
4,298,597 4,737,235
216,713 173,846
4,515,310 4,911,081
1,982,891 1,828,623
492,774 580,676
132,743 230,982
1,364,931 1,512,579
1,063,206 1,224,634
5,036,545 5,377,494
(521,235) (466,413)
111,409 67,126
$ (632,644) $ (533,539)




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE
OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

2009 2008
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — Beginning of year $ 313,542 § 383,951
DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES
OVER OPERATING EXPENSES (632,644) (533,539)
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR 1,342,116 1,613,130
AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR (350,000) _(1,150,000)
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — End of year $ 673014 $ 313,542

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Deficiency of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance deposits and ticket sales

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from operator
Amounts paid to operator

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OPERATING CASH

OPERATING CASH — Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH — End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2009 2008
$ (632,644) $ (533,539)
(121,652) (33,508)
33,696 (19,221)
(38,060) (78,088)
(5,360) (95,515)
(12,837) 267
(776,857) (759,604)
1,342,116 1,613,130
(350,000)  (1,150,000)
992,116 463,130
215,259 (296,474)
524,858 821,332

$ 740,117 $ 524,858




DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

1. OPERATIONS

DeVos Place provides space for conventions, trade shows, concerts, meetings, banquets, and other
performances. DeVos Place is operated by the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator™).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of DeVos Place. The activities of DeVos Place that are managed by SMG are referred to
herein as “SMG-DeVos Place.”

The Operator, from time to time, provides funding to SMG-DeVos Place to pay the obligations of
DeVos Place when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of
DeVos Place.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to
present the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and
operating cash flows of DeVos Place arising from the management activities of SMG and are not
intended to be a complete presentation of DeVos Place’s financial position and results of operations.
Such special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Agreement, measured in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, the special-
purpose financial statements do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair expenditures,
and related-fund equity associated with DeVos Place or certain other activities of the Operator related to
DeVos Place that are not part of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for
employees hired by SMG to manage DeVos Place under the Agreement. These employees are not
employees of the Operator.

Use of Estimates — Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
operating revenues and operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable; however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales — DeVos Place incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in
advance of an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income — Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
premium seating, which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the lives of the related
contract.



Event Revenues — SMG-DeVos Place records event revenue upon the completion of the event.
Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as
liabilities until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged
to expense upon completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues — All concession and catering, decorating, electrical, and audio-visual revenues
are recognized when earned. Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross
receipts collected by the vendor for each event.

Other Operating Revenues — Other operating revenues are comprised of premium seating, interest
income, nonevent equipment rental income, ticket rebates, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs — From time to time, SMG-DeVos Place incurs costs funded by the
Operator’s capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by
the Operator to DeVos Place. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or
expensed. These costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose
statements of operating revenues and operating expenses.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

SMG and the Operator have a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”), which originally was
scheduled to expire June 30, 2009. On April 29, 2009, the agreement was amended by the Operator to
extend through June 30, 2011. The Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive
management fee. The annual base management fee is adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year).

The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of the Arena and DeVos Place, as
managed by SMG-DeVos Place compared to certain operating revenue benchmarks, which escalate by
$100,000 each year through 2009, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee,
combined operating revenues of Van Andel Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined
operating expenses by an established benchmark, as follows:

2009 2008

Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses,

as defined — Arena $1,385,188 $1,570,807
Deficiency of operating revenue over operating

expenses, as defined — DeVos Place (521,235) (466,413)
Total excess of operating revenue over operating expenses $ 863,953 $1,104,394
Incentive benchmark $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Benchmark exceeded? Yes Yes



The following is a schedule of the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30,
2009 and 2008, of which $111,409 and $67,126, respectively, are included in accrued expenses as of
those dates:

2009 2008
Base management fee, included in general and
administrative expense (A) $ 158,672 $ 154,050
Incentive fee:
Total operating revenues — Arena 5,072,186 5,678,487
Total operating revenues — DeVos Place 4,515,310 4,911,081
Total operating revenues 9,587,496 10,589,568
Revenue benchmark — Arena 4,700,000 4,650,000
Revenue benchmark — DeVos Place 4,100,000 4,050,000
Total revenue benchmark 8,800,000 8,700,000
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark 787,496 1,889,568
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in
excess of revenue benchmark:
25% of the first $500,000, collectively 125,000 125,000
30% of the excess of $500,000, collectively up to $183,100 86,249 183,100
Total incentive fee 211,249 308,100
Incentive fee allocated to Arena 99,840 240,974
Incentive fee allocated to DeVos Place (B) 111,409 67,126
Total incentive fee 211,249 308,100
Total management fees — DeVos Place (A + B) $ 270,081 $ 221,176

The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the SMG-Arena concessions agreement with
SMG — Food and Beverage LLC. If that agreement were to be terminated, the base management fee
would increase to $175,000 for each managed facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index from the base year.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the DeVos Place may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a
401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-DeVos Place makes matching contributions equal to 67%
of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s eligible compensation.
Discretionary contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-DeVos
Place made $19,530 and $35,089 in matching contributions and $6,505 and $11,701 in discretionary
contributions for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Effective January 1, 2009, SMG
suspended indefinitely all 401 (k) matching and discretionary contributions on a company wide basis.

-8-



OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of DeVos Place, SMG personnel also manage the operations of SMG-
Arena. The two facilities share certain expenses such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and
insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also
share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.
Accounts receivable include $104,764 and $174,134 due from the SMG-Arena as of June 30, 2009 and
2008, respectively. Accounts payable include $15,457 due to SMG-Arena as of June 30, 2009.

CONTINGENCIES

DeVos Place is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-DeVos Place’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no
provision for loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date have been evaluated through September 28,
2009, the date the special-purpose financial statements were available to be issued. The special-purpose
financial statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date.

% %k %k %k k %



Van Andel Arena,
as Managed by SMG

Special-Purpose Financial Statements
as of and for the Years Ended

June 30, 2009 and 2008,

and Independent Auditors’ Report

Item IV.B.iii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1
SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008:
Special-Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 2
Special-Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 3
Special-Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising
from Activities Managed by SMG 4
Special-Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising From
Activities Managed by SMG 5

Notes to Special-Purpose Financial Statements 69



Deloitte. I

700 Bridgewater Place

333 Bridge Street N.W.
Grand Rapids, M| 49504-5359
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7950
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena™), as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and for the years then ended, as listed
in the table of contents. These special-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of SMG-Arena. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special-purpose
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the special-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of SMG-Arena’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the special-purpose financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall special-purpose financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared to present the assets, liabilities,
amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of Van Andel
Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete presentation
of Van Andel Arena’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SMG-Arena at June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-Arena and officials

of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be, and should not
be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mitoitte ¢ Trorche b

September 28, 2009

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

AS OF JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow

Accounts receivable — net of allowance of $46,000 in

2009 and $62,000 in 2008
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advance ticket sales

Advance deposits
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2009 2008
$ 1,536,703 $1,912,643
2,823,312 1,777,069
1,516,743 750,252
130,694 81,232
$6,007,452 $4,521,196
$ 691,024 $ 612,120
490,531 720,778
2,823,312 1,777,069
6,500 7,500
1,176,055 1,005,251
5,187,422 4,122,718
820,030 398,478
$6,007452 $4,521,196




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events

Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Novelties
Other

Total net ancillary revenues
Total events and net ancillary revenues

Other revenues:
Premium seating
Advertising income
Other — including interest income of $27,990 and $93,406
in 2009 and 2008, respectively

Total other revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES — Before incentive management fee

INCENTIVE MANAGEMENT FEE

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2009 2008
$ 1,199,916 $ 1,591,225
1,096,962 1,248,683
120,541 191,114
35,443 39,637
1,252,946 1,479,434
2,452,862 3,070,659
1,545,982 1,285,426
663,135 633,824
410,207 688,579
2,619,324 2,607,829
5,072,186 5,678,488
1,578,602 1,517,474
193,128 303,944
119,444 199,379
889,669 891,626
906,155 1,195,257
3,686,998 4,107,680
1,385,188 1,570,808
99,840 240,974
$ 1,285,348 $ 1,329,834




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT
DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

2009 2008
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — Beginning of year $ 398,479 $ 677,565
EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER OPERATING
EXPENSES 1,285,348 1,329,834
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED FROM OPERATOR 1,036,202 1,091,080
AMOUNTS PAID TO OPERATOR (1,899,999) (2,700,000)
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR — End of year $ 820,030 $ 398,479

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM

ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating revenues over operating expenses
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance deposits
Deferred income

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from Operator
Amounts paid to Operator

Net cash used in financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH

OPERATING CASH — Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH — End of year

See notes to special-purpose financial statements.

2009 2008
$ 1,285,348  $ 1,329,833
(766,491) 240,376
(49,462) (8,659)
78,904 145,797
(230,247) 372,801
(1,000)
170,805 187,000
487,857 2,267,148
1,036,202 1,091,080
(1,899,999)  (2,700,000)
(863,797)  (1,608,920)
(375,940) 658,228
1,912,643 1,254,415
$ 1,536,703  $ 1,912,643




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 AND 2008

1. OPERATIONS

Van Andel Arena (the “Arena™) provides space for family shows, concerts, sporting events, meetings,
and other performances. The Arena is operated by the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator™).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of the Arena. The activities of the Arena that are managed by SMG are herein referred to as
“SMG-Arena.”

The Operator from time to time provides funding to SMG-Arena to pay the obligations of the Arena
when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of the Arena.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared to
present the assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and
operating cash flows of Van Andel Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not
intended to be a complete presentation of Van Andel Arena’s financial position and results of
operations. Such special-purpose financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Agreement, measured in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly,
the special-purpose financial statements do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair
expenditures, and related fund equity associated with the Arena or certain other activities of the Operator
related to the Arena that are not part of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are
for employees hired by SMG to manage the Arena under the Agreement. These employees are not
employees of the Operator.

Use of Estimates — Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
operating revenues and operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its
estimates to be reasonable; however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales — The Arena incurs a liability for cash received from ticket sales in advance of
an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Operating revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income — Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
luxury boxes and advertising contracts which are recognized as revenues on a straight-line basis over the
lives of the related contract. Also included are ticket rebates received from the ticket agent prior to an
event, which are not recognized as revenue until the event occurs.



Event Revenues — SMG-Arena records event revenue upon the completion of the event. Accordingly,
amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as liabilities until that
time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon
completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues — All concession and merchandise revenues are recognized when earned.
Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor
for each event.

Other Operating Revenues — Other operating revenues include revenues associated with luxury
seating, advertising, ticket rebates, interest income, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs — From time to time, SMG-Arena incurs costs funded by the Operator’s
capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator
to the Arena. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These
costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special-purpose statements of
operating revenues and operating expenses.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

SMG and the Operator have a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”), which was originally
scheduled to expire June 30, 2009. On April 29, 2009, the agreement was amended by the Operator to
extend through June 30, 2011. The Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive
management fee. The annual base management fee is adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year).

The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of the Arena and DeVos Place, as
managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena™) compared to certain operating revenue benchmarks which escalate
by $100,000 each year through 2009, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee,
combined operating revenues of SMG-Arena and SMG-DeVos Place must exceed combined operating
expenses by an established benchmark, as follows:

2009 2008
Excess of operating revenue over operating expenses —
as defined — Arena $1,385,188 $1,570,807
Deficiency of operating revenue over operating expenses —
as defined — DeVos Place (521,235) (466,413)
Total excess of operating revenue over operating expenses $ 863,953 $1,104,394
Incentive benchmark $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Benchmark exceeded? Yes Yes



The following is a schedule of the base and incentive management fees for the years ended June 30,
2009 and 2008, of which $99,840 and $240,974, respectively, are included in accrued expenses as of
those dates, is as follows:

2009 2008
Base management fee — included in general and
administrative expense (A) $ 158,672 $ 154,050
Incentive fee calculation:
Total operating revenues — Arena $ 5,072,186 $ 5,678,487
Total operating revenues — DeVos Place 4,515,310 4,911,081
Total operating revenues 9,587,496 10,589,568
Revenue benchmark — Arena 4,700,000 4,650,000
Revenue benchmark — DeVos Place 4,100,000 4,050,000
Total revenue benchmark 8,800,000 8,700,000
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark $ 787,496 $ 1,889,568
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in
excess of revenue benchmark:
25% of the first $500,000, collectively $ 125,000 $ 125,000
30% of the excess of $500,000, collectively, up to $183,100 86,249 183,100
Total incentive fee $ 211,249 $ 308,100
Incentive fee allocated to Arena (B) $ 99,840 $ 240,974
Incentive fee allocated to DeVos Place 111,409 67,126
Total incentive fee $ 211,249 $ 308,100
Total management fees — Arena (A + B) $ 258,512 $ 395,024

The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the Arena concessions agreement with
SMG-Food & Beverage, LLC. If that agreement were to be terminated, the base management fee would
increase to $175,000 for each managed facility, adjusted annually by the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index from the base year.

RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the Arena may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a 401(k)
defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of employment and
1,000 hours of service. SMG-Arena makes matching contributions equal to 67% of each participant’s
contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the participant’s eligible compensation. Discretionary
contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG-Arena made $15,287
and $27,183 in matching contributions and $5,262 and $9,494 in discretionary contributions for the
years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Effective January 1, 2009, SMG suspended
indefinitely all 401 (k) matching and discretionary contributions on a company wide basis.



OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of the Arena, SMG personnel also manage the operations of DeVos Place.
The two facilities share certain expenses such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and insurance,
resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also share a box
office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales. Accounts
payable include $104,764 and $174,134 due to DeVos Place as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Accounts receivable include $15,457 due from DeVos Place as of June 30, 2009.

On July 1, 2006, the Operator entered into a concessions agreement for the Arena with SMG-Food &
Beverage, LLC a related party to SMG. Accounts receivable include $16,213 and $65,400 from
SMG-Food & Beverage, LLC as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

The Arena is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material effect on SMG-Arena’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no provision for
loss has been made in the accompanying special-purpose financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date have been evaluated through September 28,
2009, the date the special-purpose financial statements were available to be issued. The special-purpose
financial statements and the notes thereto do not reflect events or transactions after this date.

% %k %k % % %k



Item I'V.B.iii.

Deloitte.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

700 Bridgewater Place

333 Bridge St., NW.

Grand Rapids, M| 49504-5359
USA

Tel: +1 616 336 7900
Fax: +1 616 336 7850
www.deloitte.com

September 28, 2009

Finance Committee of
Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Dear Members of Finance Committee:

We have performed an audit of the special purpose financial statements of DeVos Place as managed by
SMG and Van Andel Arena, as managed by SMG (the “Arena and DeVos Place™) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2009, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uruted States of
America and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2009.

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfilling your obligation to oversee the
financial reporting and disclosure process for which management of the Arena and DeVos Place is
responsible.

Our Responsibility Under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

Our responsibility under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America has been
described in our engagement letter dated June 30, 2009, a copy of which has been provided to you. As
described in that letter, the objective of a financial statement audit conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America is to express an opinion on the fairness of
the presentation of the Arena and DeVos Place’s special purpose financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“generally accepted accounting principles”), in all material respects. Our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards include forming and expressing an opinion about whether the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of Finance Committee are
presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or Finance Committee of their
responsibilities.

We considered the Arena and DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Arena and DeVos Place’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Arena and DeVos Place’s internal
control over financial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are ordinarily based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and on assumptions about future events. Significant accounting
estimates reflected in the Arena and DeVos Place’s 2009 financial statements include the allowance for
doubtful accounts. During the year ended June 30, 2009, we are not aware of any significant changes in
accounting estimates or in management’s judgments relating to such estimates.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or
fraud. There were no uncorrected misstatements or disclosure items passed identified during our audit.

Material Corrected Misstatements

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or
fraud. There were no material misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result
of our audit procedures.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Arena and DeVos Place’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 2 to the Arena and
DeVos Place’s financial statements. During the year ended June 30, 2009, there were no significant
changes in previously adopted accounting policies or their application.

Significant Issues Discussed, or Subject of Correspondence, With Management Prior to
Our Initial Engagement or Retention

Throughout the year, routine discussions were held, or were the subject of correspondence, with
management regarding the application of accounting principles or auditing standards in connection with
transactions that have occurred, transactions that are contemplated, or reassessment of current
circumstances. In our judgment, such discussions or correspondence were not held in connection with our
retention as auditors.

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

In our judgment, we received the full cooperation of the Company’s management and staff and had
unrestricted access to the Company’s senior management in the performance of our audit.

Management’s Representations

We have made specific inquiries of the Arena and DeVos Place’s management about the representations
embodied in the financial statements. Additionally, we will have requested that management provide to us
the written representations the Arena and DeVos Place is required to provide to its independent auditors
under generally accepted auditing standards. We have attached to this letter, as Appendix A, a copy of the
representation letter we obtained from management.

® ok K ok K ok



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Finance Committee, and
others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Yours truly,

etoitts ¢ Trorche wf

cc: The Management of Arena and DeVos Place

e Appendix A: Representations from Managements,



APPENDIX A

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
P e et

At e R s s N et e g ®
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENTY CONVENT ON. SHDW & SPORYY FAC LI &5

September 28, 2009

Deloitte & Touche LLP
700 Bridgewater Place
333 Bridge Street N.W.
Grand Rapids, MI 49504

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the DeVos Place special purpose
statements of assets, liabilities, and amounts due Operator arising from the activities managed by
SMG (“SMG-DeVos Place”) as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 and the related special purpose
financial statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from activities
managed by SMG, changes in amounts due Operator arising from activities managed by SMG,

Convenli
Arena > and operating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG, for the years ended June 30,

2009 and 2008, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the special purpose
Authority financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of

operations, and cash flows of DeVos Place, as managed by SMG, in conformity with the basis
Steven Heacock, accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statements. We confirm that we

Choirmon are responsible for the following:

Biigd Kiohs
Ciif Chorles a.  The fair presentation in the special purpose, financial statements of financial position, results
Gary Mclnerney of operations, and cash flows in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2
Gaorge Heariwell to the special purpose financial statements.
icsoch Tomasedli
Lew Chambelir. b.  The design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud.

c.  Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.

Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of

accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the

Jjudgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by

the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you

during your audits.

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the basis
of accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statements.
2. SMG - DeVos Place has made available to you all:
/K/.‘ﬂ\ a. Financial records and related data
VAN ANDEL b. Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and committees of directors or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet WAC E

Van Andel Arena® DeVos Places
130 West Fulion 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503- 2233
616.742.6600 616.742 6500
Fax 616.742 6197 Fax 616.742.6590

SHD

EESE=



3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

4. SMG- DeVos Place has not performed a risk assessment, including the assessment of the
risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

S.  We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Company involving:
a. Management.

b. Employees who have significant roles in SMG - DeVos Place’s internal control over
financial reporting.

¢. Others if the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

6. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG -
DeVos Place received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, short sellers, or others.

7. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that legal counsel has advised us are
probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies.

8. As an enterprise fund of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority, SMG- DeVos Place is exempt from Federal Income Tax. We are not
aware of any activities that have taken place that would jeopardize SMG-DeVos
Place’s income tax exempt status.

Except where otherwise stated below, matters less than $ 22,000 collectively are not
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

9. There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

10. SMG-DeVos Place has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

11. The following, to the extent applicable, have been appropriately identified, properly
recorded, and disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related party transactions and associated amounts receivable or payable, including
sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees (written or oral)

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which SMG-DeVos Place is contingently
liable.

12. In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the basis of accounting described in
Note 2 of special purpose financial statements, management uses estimates. All estimates



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

have been disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are
met:

a. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial
statements of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of
the financial statements will change in the near term due to one or more future
confirming events.

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

Risks associated with concentrations, based on information known to management, that
meet all of the following criteria have been disclosed in the financial statements:

a. The concentration exists at the date of the financial statements.

b. The concentration makes the enterprise vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe
impact.

c. Itis at least reasonably possible that the events that could cause the severe impact will
occur in the near term.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed by FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies.

SMG - DeVos Place has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral

SMG - DeVos Place has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may have
an effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance

No events have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2009 that require consideration as
adjustments to or disclosures in the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against
debtors for sales or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and
have been appropriately reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are
recoverable.

We have no intention of withdrawing from the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of
the plan. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of
the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan.



21. Provision has been made for any loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from
inability to fulfill, any sales commitments.

22. Sales with recourse provisions have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements.

23. We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price
adjustments and all warranty provisions.

24. All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in customer files. We
also confirm that:

a.

We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with
the applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the customer’s file. For the purposes of this letter, a “side
agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment whether written
(e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral by or on behalf of SMG-DeVos Place (or
any subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of the SMG) with a customer from whom
revenue has been recognized that is not contained in the written purchase order from the
customer or sales order confirmation and sales invoice of SMG — DeVos Place delivered
to or generated by SMG — DeVos Place’s Accounting and Finance Department. The
definition of a side agreement is not limited by any particular subject matter. For
purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in the written purchase order
from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of SMG — DeVos Place that relates to
return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment terms, free consulting, free
maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

We are not aware of any commitments or concessions to a customer regarding pricing or
payment terms outside of the terms documented in the customer’s file.

25. For the purpose of calculating the incentive fee, all interest income included in the
calculation is properly included and does not include any ineligible income.

26. For purposes of the special purpose financial statements, non-contractual expenses have
been appropriately excluded from the special purpose Statement of Revenues and Expenses
arising from activities managed by SMG.

Iy

acKei Ge&}r | Manager . - -

Vel th,l (D‘#ector of Finance




B i i et e i i ed
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERIAINMENT CONVENIION SHOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

September 28, 2009

Deloitte & Touche LLP
700 Bridgewater Place
333 Bridge Street N.W.
Grand Rapids, MI 49504

We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the Van Andel Arena special
purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and amounts due Operator arising from the activities
managed by SMG (“SMG-Van Andel Arena”) as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 and the related
special purpose financial statements of operating revenues and operating expenses arising from

Convention

Areno activities managed by SMG, changes in amounts due Operator arising from activities managed by

Avthoriy SMG, and operating cash flows arising from activitie§ managed by SMG, for the years end.ed
June 30, 2009 and 2008, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the special
purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results

Steven Heacock, of operations, and cash flows of Van Andel Arena, as managed by SMG, in conformity with the

Chaicman basis accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statements. We confirm that

Birgit Kiohs we are responsible for the following:

Clii Chorles

Gary Mcinernzy a.  The fair presentation in the special purpose, financial statements of financial position, results

Geoige Heartwell of operations, and cash flows in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 2

josesh Tomusell to the special purpose financial statements.

lew Chembedin

b. The design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud
c. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audits.

I. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with the basis
of accounting described in Note 2 to the special purpose financial statements.

2. SMG - Van Andel Arena has made available to you all:

: a. Financial records and related data
VAN ANDEL

b. Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and committees -
I summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet treerd-préparet:
Van Andel Arenae DeVos Places
130 West Fulton 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, M1 49503-2233
616.742 6600 616. 6500
Fax 616.742.6 590




There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

SMG- Van Andel Arena has not performed a risk assessment, including the
assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a
result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Company involving:
a. Management.

b. Employees who have significant roles in SMG-Van Andel Arena’s internal control
over financial reporting.

¢. Others if the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting SMG-Van
Andel Arena received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, short sellers, or others.

. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that legal counsel has advised us are
probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with ASC 450
Contingencies (Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 3,
Accounting for Contingencies).

. As an enterprise fund of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena

Authority, SMG-Van Andel Arena is exempt from Federal Income Tax. We are not
aware of any activities that have taken place that would jeopardize SMG-Van Andel
Arena’s income tax exempt status.

Except where otherwise stated below, matters less than $ 25,000 collectively are not
considered to be exceptions that require disclosure for the purpose of the following
representations. This amount is not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

9. There are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records

underlying the financial statements.

10. SMG-Van Andel Arena has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or

classification of assets and liabilities.

11. The following, to the extent applicable, have been appropriately identified, properly
recorded, and disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related party transactions and associated amounts receivable or payable, including
sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees (written or oral)

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which SMG - Van Andel Arena is
contingently liable.



12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

18.

19.

20.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the basis of accounting described in
Note 2 of special purpose financial statements, management uses estimates. All estimates
have been disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are
met:

a. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial
statements of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of
the financial statements will change in the near term due to one or more future
confirming events.

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

Risks associated with concentrations, based on information known to management, that
meet all of the following criteria have been disclosed in the financial statements:

a. The concentration exists at the date of the financial statements.

b. The concentration makes the enterprise vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe
impact,

c. It is at least reasonably possible that the events that could cause the severe impact will
occur in the near term.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss
contingency.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies.

SMG - Van Andel Arena has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral

SMG - Van Andel Arena has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may
have an effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance

. No events have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2009 that requires consideration as

adjustments to or disclosures in the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against
debtors for sales or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and
have been appropriately reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are
recoverable.

We have no intention of withdrawing from the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of



the plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of
the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan.

21. Provision has been made for any loss to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from
inability to fulfill, any sales commitments.

22. Sales with recourse provisions have been properly recorded and disclosed in the financial
statements.

23. We have fully disclosed to you all sales terms, including all rights of return or price
adjustments and all warranty provisions.

24. All documentation related to sales transactions is contained in customer files. We
also confirm that:

a. We are not aware of any “side agreements” with any companies that are inconsistent with
the applicable sales agreement, the customer’s purchase order, sales invoice, or any other
documentation contained in the customer’s file. For the purposes of this letter, a “side
agreement” is any agreement, understanding, promise, or commitment whether written
(e.g., in the form of a letter or formal agreement or in the form of any exchange of
physical or electronic communications) or oral by or on behalf of SMG-Van Andel Arena
(or any subsidiary, director, employee, or agent of the SMG) with a customer from whom
revenue has been recognized that is not contained in the written purchase order from the
customer or sales order confirmation and sales invoice of SMG — Van Andel Arena
delivered to or generated by SMG — Van Andel Arena’s Accounting and Finance
Department. The definition of a side agreement is not limited by any particular subject
matter. For purposes of example only, any agreement not contained in the written
purchase order from the customer or sales order and sales invoice of SMG — Van Andel
Arena that relates to return rights, acceptance rights, future pricing, payment terms, free
consulting, free maintenance, or exchange rights would be a side agreement.

b. We are not aware of any commitments or concessions to a customer regarding pricing or
payment terms outside of the terms documented in the customer’s file.

25. For the purpose of calculating the incentive fee, all interest income included in the
calculation is properly included and does not include any ineligible income.

26. For purposes of the special purpose financial statements, non-contractual expenses have
been appropriately excluded from the special purpose Statement of Revenues and Expenses
arising from activities managed by SMG.




Item IV.B.1v.

Memorandum

To: Members of the CAA Board

From: Robert White
Kent County Fiscal Service Director

Subject: First Quarter Consolidated Budget Summary/Financial Report

Date: October 21, 2009

The attached table provides an analysis of operating revenues, expenses, and capital expenditures by
functional area. The analysis compares prior year actual with current year budget allowance and first
quarter of prior fiscal year financial performance with first quarter current year (FY 2010) financial
performance.

The attached report may be further summarized in the following manner:

Annual Year To Date
FY 2009 FY 2010 2009 2010
Actual Budget Change 7/1/-9/30 7/1-9/30 Change
Net Proceeds - VAA $ 1,429,208 $ 1,297,424 9.2) $ 127,758 $ 66,111 (48.3)
- DVP (39,106) (250,628) (540.9) (439,157) (402,597) 8.3
- Other 334,127 (70,181) (121.0) 200,193 (129,270) (164.6)
Total Operating 1,724,229 976,615 43.4) (111,206) (465,756) (318.8)
Capital Expense 376,443 1,945,200 (244,058) (201,423)
Net Increase (Decrease)  $ 1,347,786 $ (968,585) $(355,264) $ (667,179)

In Net Assets

First quarter financial performance is running ahead of trend for the DeVos Place® convention center
and behind on trend for both Van Andel Arena® and “Other” activities of the Authority.



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other
Three-Month Financial Trends for Period Ended September 30, 2009

Van Andel Arena
Operating - Revenues
- Expenses - Facilities

- Base Management Fees
- Incentive Fees

Net Operating Income

Parking (net of allocated expenses)

Net Proceeds from VAA

DeVos Place Convention Center
Operating - Revenues
- Expenses - Facilities

- Base Management Fees
- Incentive Fees

Net Operating Loss

Parking (net of allocated expenses)

Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP

Other

Revenues
Interest
Miscellaneous

Expenses
Marketing Campaign
Pedestrian Safety
Landscaping
Administration
DeVos Parking Maintenance

Net Other
Total Operating

Capital Expenditures
Results Net of Capital Expenditures

M Year-end balances, subject to audit.

Annual Year-To-Date
FY 2009 FY 2010 Percentage FY 2009 FY 2010 Percentage
Actual® Budget Change  __ 7/1-9/30 711 - 9/30 Change
$ 5,072,186  $5,004,712 (14) $ 984,491 $881,579 (10.5)
(3,528,326)  (3,683,368) 4.4) (873,291) (775,800) 11.2
(158,672) (158,671) (39,668) (39,668)
(99,840) - - -
1,285,348 1,162,673 ©.5) 71,532 66,111 (7.6)
143,860 134,751 6.3) 56,226 - (100.0)
1,429,208 1,297,424 92) 127,758 66,111 (48.3)
4,515,310 4,712,755 44 666,784 645215 (32
4,877,873)  (5,393,674) 10.6 (1,130,818)  (1,040,847) 8.0
(158,672) (158,671) (39,668) (39,668)
(111,409) - - -
(632,644) (839,590) 32.7) (503,702) (435,300) 13.6
593,538 588,962 0.7 64,545 32,703 (49.3)
(39,106) (250,628) (540.9) (439,157) (402,597) 83
647,689 675,000 132,860 39,696
204,305 - 99,920 -
851,994 675,000 (20.8) 232,780 39,696 (82.9)
- 100,000 - -
78,108 96,000 3,447 5471
20,000 100,000 - -
419,759 439,181 29,140 @ 163495 @
- 10,000 - -
517,867 745,181 43.9 32,587 168,966 418.5
334,127 (70,181) (121.0) 200,193 (129,270)
$ 1,724,229  § 976,615 (434) $§  (111,206) _$ (465,756) (318.8)
376,443 1,945,200 (244,058) (201,423)
$ 1,347,786 $ (968,585) $  (355264) _$ (667,179)

@ Line Item FY 2009 FY 2010
Legal $ 1,309 $ 65,526
Insurance 50 22,903
Food/Beverage (21,327) -
Wages/Benefits 20,179 30,923
Other 28,929 44,143

$ 29,140 § 163,495




VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
(Revised)
DATE EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Fri, Oct 23 Griffins vs Abbotsford GC | LYNNE | Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Griffins season home opener
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
West Side Beer MID East Nest 6P-9:50P Banquet
Comcast West Nest 6P-9:50P Banquet
Griffins Suite 101A 6P-9:50P Griffins staff
Sat, Oct 24 Griffins vs Toronto RS TODD Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game autographs
MIJD East Nest 6P-9:50P Griffins staff
Ronald McDonald House Suite 101A 6P-9:50P Auction/Banquet
Sun, Oct 25 Griffins vs Abbotsford GC KATHY | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
4.00 PM Doors
5P-7:30P Hockey game
7:30P-7:50P | Post-game skate
MID Banquet C 3:30P-4:40P | Griffins FSE Department
East Nest 4P-7:50P Griffins Staff
W Mich Sports Commission Talsma Terrace 4P-7:50P Banquet
Beth Radecki Suite 101A 4P-7:50P Contest winner banquet
Mon, Oct 26 | Available
Tue, Oct 27 Available
Wed, Oct 28 | Available
Thur, Oct 29 | Griffins vs Houston RS KATHY | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Grand Rapids Bar Association | MJD Banquet B 6P-9:30P Banquet
GVSU Sports Promotion Class Banquet C 6P-9:30P Banquet
Gilson West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
MOS Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
Barnes & Thornburg Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Fri, Oct 30 Griffins vs Houston GC | TODD Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Studio Dance MJD North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Staging area
Sat, Oct 31 Available @
Sun, Nov 1 Dierks Bentley (B93 Roofsit) RS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
MID Banquet B 7:30A-9P Crew catering
Mon, Nov 2 Available
Tue, Nov 3 Available
Wed, Nov 4 Available
Thur, Nov 5 Available
Fri, Nov 6 Griffins vs Chicago RS Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
9:50P-10:10P [ Post-game autographs
SMG CC Banquet B 10A-11:30A | CMU tour
Michigan Tech Alumni MID Banquet C/D 6P-7P Banquet
Lasers Resource East/West Nests 6P-9:30P Banquet
Jenison Dance Team North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Staging area
Sat, Nov 7 Amway GC Arena Private concert for employees
Sun, Nov 8 Available




Mon, Nov 9 Metallica GC Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Tue, Nov 10 | Def Leppard/Cheap Trick RS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
MID Banquet B/C 6:30A-9:30P | Crew catering
Wed, Nov 11 | Griffins vs Lake Erie GC Arena 11:00 AM Doors
12P-2:30P Hockey game
MID Banquet All 11A-2:30P Breakout sessions
Thur, Nov 12 | Available
Fri, Nov 13 Griffins vs Milwaukee RS Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
DP Fox Holdings MID Banquet B 6P-7P Banquet
Vision Source Banquet C/W. Nest | 6P-9:30P Banquet
West Side Beer East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Griffin Properties Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
GVSU Poms North Tunnel 6P-7:30P Staging area
Sat, Nov 14 Griffins vs Rochester GC Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
: 6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
9:50P-10:10P_| Post-game autographs
MID Banquet All 6P-7P Charlie Sanders Autographs
Kenowa Hills Varsity Dance North Tunnel 6P-7:30P Staging area
Star Tickets Suite 101A 6P-10:10P Banquet
Sun, Nov 15 | Available
Mon, Nov 16 | Available
Tue, Nov 17 Available
Wed, Nov 18 | Available
Thur, Nov 19 | Available
Fri, Nov 20 Griffins vs Texas GC Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Leprino Foods MID Banquet B/C 6P-7P Banquet
Retirement Living Management East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Gilson West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Michigan Office Solutions Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
West Side Beer North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Banquet
Barnes & Thormburg Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Nov 21 Available
Sun, Nov 22 MSU vs WMU RS Arena 4:00 PM Women’s basketball game




60/02/01

g-v wooljjeg = G-V 11vd
lieH ouBULIOldd SOAST = Ad

Swooy Sunad 0JUoN =0-V NOW
-V YOOWAAQ 1oAY = 4-V OY

BalY AJdj{ED) pURBID = DO

H-V swiooy Sunasiy J0oHdA0 = H-V O

ré D-V siieHd #qyxd = O-V HI 4-V swooy Sunasy Adjfen pueln = J-v D

SUOISSag noyealg wdo0:g-wdog wooipieog asey)d

Buysayy [enuuy YN wdp0:g-wdog: V/ JO0UBAQ JaAY

woospieog aseyd

SUOISS9S INoYealg wdg | :p-wdoo:¢ ‘4-V YOOUBAQ JaAlY

INO A0 JOUqIYX3 wdpo:g-wdoo:¢ gy woolljeg

sjeuld souqiyx3 wdpo:g-wdgL:Z gv wooJjjeg

woojpieog aseyd

SuoISSaS Inoyeasg wdpg:Z-wdgL:| ‘4-Y YOOUBAQ Janly

wooJipieog aseyd

suoIssag noyeaig wegy: | {-wepe:0l ‘4-Y/ YOOUBAQ JaNY

uogoun4

yeasg jualuysayay WeQE:01-Wwepo:0l -31d YOOU3AQ JaARY

uado shgpaa wdpo:¢-wesy:6 gy wooljjeg

wiooiplieog aseyd

SUOISSaG Jnoyeag wepo:0}-wes:g ‘4-v %OOp3AQ Joany

isepieasg Sunpomian wegy:g-weoe: . gy woosjjeg

0$Z ‘IONVANTLLY 183 | va uonensibay wdpo:¢g-wepe:, £qqoT ysiem FONTYIINOD NOLLITIGVHIY NVDIHIINW
54 u) 3o sAleN | INDOO:¥ — INd00:Z)L O HeH 1awx3 SATVIN

uoIssas wdpQ:z-wdoo:L
uoissag | wdgliZi-wegLiii
uoissag |  weQQ:| L-wepo:0L

uoIssas wegGH:6-Wweon:6 v A19)jeo) puess)
IO peon Jojeiocsq weQQ:Z1L-wdoo:g
umo(-seal wdpg:g-wdoo:€

SINOY Moyg wdpo:€-Weoe:6 v lleH ¥qiyx3 TC 100 "SUNHL

uoydwAg
yum (00Z1) lesieayay usdo

wdog 0} — wdog:L

3L1LNL NV4 ISOD

0021 :FDONVANALLY 1S3 | v | ¥ed Bupesg —san) Bunybn wdpQ:9 — Wepo:g HdAQ 'SINISTUd SAIdVYE ANVYID VIIJO
UOISSag JU3pNIS Alenpelo)
uondaoay/buiuado wdpo-g-wdog:9 wooipieog asey)d
pues) uoqIpg wdog:g-wdgy g gv wooJjieg
vadQ suqupa wdogrg-widg):Z gv wooleg
woospieog aseyd
SUOISSaS noyeasg wdog:g-wdgL:Z ‘3-y JOOPAAQ JAAIY
ajouka)y buiuadoyoum wdpQ:z-wdoo:Z! gy wooujeg
Bututel | Jojepoe weoe: | 1-wegL:0l 3 %00UBAQ 1A
wooupieoq aseyd
SUCISSOS JnoNealg WeQE: L L-WwegL:0l ‘3-y JOOUIAQ JaAY
uadQ suquux3 wdpO:Z4-Wwepo:0L gv wooujieg
woospieog
Buutes ) Joje|IOE JISNUNIOA wepo:0L-wep0:6 | 9SeYD ‘J NOOUSAQ JaAR]
uogensibay wdpo:g-wepo:8 £qqo ysiem
0SZ “ADNVANTLLY ‘1S3 | vd dn 198 uqux3 WepQ:0L-wegp:L gy wooJjjieg FONFTYFINOD NOLLITIGVHIY NVDIHIIN

600¢C — ATAIIM




60/02/01

-V wooljfeqg = d-v 11vd
|IBH 99UeULIOLIdd SOAST = Ad

swooy Sunas 20JUo =0-V NOW
4-V HOOHAQ JAATY = 4-V OY

valy AIs|[eD pueln = DO

H-V swooy Sunaspy Jool2A0 = H-V O

¢ J-V slleH 1qiyx3 = D~V HA 4-V swooy 3unsspy Asjeo puein = 4-v O
NIJO ONILVIS Nd00:L
TINLOFT VYIdO Tid Wd00:L —NdOE9 | ONILVIS VYLSIHOYO
N3dO
SMOHS T VULSTHOUO/NIIO AGE0T WdST:9 1LLNL NV4 ISOD
YIAO 00S€ “FONVANILLY 183 | AV N340 $300d 3AISLNO WNd009 Hdd ‘SINISTYd SAIdVY ANVID VIIdO
vedaQ sjssno
wex3 Wdo00:9
Wwoo) 0} SOUBIWPY NdSP:S - NdOE: L
younq Wdsi:L
wex3 Wdl - NdZi
wooy WdZl - Nv8
0} douepwpy pue uoyensibay WVSL:L
aALIe sasuIwexy WV0E:9 -V SWooy 30;UoN
E SALIE SI0P0Id WVS IleH [epoay SIWVXT ONIITINIONT
u
(pospuay) uonels yanRy a1bbog asi swifeq oged Jany
so|qe} soeid 0} suogeiadQ Wd00'€ 8 lleH ¥anpag
U} peoT] uoRINpPoId Wd00:Z — WY00:6 g lleH ¥ayx3
sabeys yioq soeyd o} suonesado WV00'8 8 IleH ¥aiux3
o) VYO MOYS Nd00:8 — WY00'8 g YO Moyg ISNVI V HLIM SMVd
ainpedagq jusio wooupseog
SUOISSaS JnoYeal wdpo:Z L-wesy:0l aseud ‘4-v oY
yeaug uswysaydy WeGH:0L-WeGL:0L uooung-aid OY
woouspseog
SUOISSaG Jnoyealg WeG|:01-Wwep0:6 asBYd ‘4-v Oy
Isepeaig |ejusunuod Wep0:6-WepQ's uonound-aid Oy
uonensibay Wepg:6-Wwepo:g £qgoT usem
05T ‘FONVANILLY 1S3 | va BN sapiwwio) Buiuueld 0102 WeGH:0L-Wwege:2 H %OO0U3A0 99 FONTYTANOD NOLLITISVHTY NVOIHIIN
~ buRaawW MOYS aid Wd00'S 43 Kisjies pues
112D 19po Wdoo:9 v wooljjeq
SWI00Y
uj peo1 uononpold J00:S - WV00'8 |  YoousaQ/OO/swoolieg
U] peo UoHENAST WV00:8 Q pue O swooljjieg
N uj peo] Joyqiyx3 Wd00:9 — WV00:6 D lIeH ¥qiyx3 SATVIA
Moygs uoiyse4 wd 00:2 Y lleH ¥aiux3
uedo shqupx3 |  wd 00:6 — wdpo:g V IleH ¥qux3
u1 peo Jouqiyx3 | wd 00:E — we 00:0L
000S :FONVANALLY '1S3 JeALLY SUOIONPOI PUNOS wepo:6 »00Q uebiyoN NOLLVIOOSSY ONIAdIm NVOIHOIN 1S3M £2 120 'Tid

4LLNL NV4 ISOD

AV AAvA Hdd ‘SLNASTAUd SAIdVY ANVYD ViIdO
SHUUG BIA POISAIBP SWexX] Wd00C -V SWooy S0IUOW

an |BALLY JUBIID INdOE-L l1eH [exody SIWVXT ONIYIINIONT
yodied Aej 0} yei vy Wd00:01 g lleH ¥qpaqa
uj peoT uononpoid Nd00:0l — Wd00:CL g lleH ¥qipa

0| Ul peoj 304jo Moys Wd00:01 — NV00:8 8 30WO Mmoys dSNVI V HLIm SMvd

600C — A

CEN\N

aryne




60/02/01

Q-v wooljieq = J-v 11vd
[eH 22UBULIONS] SOAS] = Ad
DV SlieH #quyxg = 3~V H3

Swoo0y U9y 201U =(0-V NOW

4-V Y0O3AQ J0A1Y = 4-V OY

valy AI3j[eD puRID = DD

H-V swooy Sunesy NOOHIAO = H-V O
d-V swooy Sunaspy Assj{en puein = 4-v O

W01 O} SOUETIWPY WdStt
youn-y Wdl - WdzL
wex3 WdZl - W8
wy 0) soueliwpY pue bay WVSLL 4 %OOH3AQ) JOAY
aAWIE SPaUILEXT WVOE:9 -V SWooy 30IUOW
aw a?Em su0001d WY lIeH [eoay SIWVX3 DNINIANIONT
0Na303y 3
oopuone 0 uds | W06 ~ Wa0D:, 3 IleH uaupa
Nd00:9 2 IleH ¥qIpa
AINO siouquyx3 o} uedo Sti00
soopenp/AseeS
wop ujuogonpoig | A0S TENOI | P
uj peo Jsuoj4 o : il
000€ ‘FONVANILLY "1S3 | Oy | Ul peoT Jouqiyx3 |euoppy Wd00:1 — V008 9 IIFH g S.ATVIN
(isisend
YIS 0} SuUo mmﬁ%.r 40 Jeap aq ynul
1TV aHus g _sm O | woos) pyd1 | xoxddy g lleH uaquyx3
Qo uonels .*Q__OMOO_ moo WdLL XQQQ( oned Jaary
no ﬂo_wwodm INV00:Z — WNd00:0L |  YHON g IleH HqIux3
wowimyony | W00l ~WdOE6 | 4inos @ IIEH ¥aa
weibor) | NAOEE ~ Wd00:6 g IleH HqIux3
ooy | 006 ~ WaoE:8 g IleH ¥qIyx3
. K N e IQIYX
—— I B e
coauww%wo_w_/ Wd00:Z — Nd00:9 |  uinos g IleH uqux3
drje INd0E:9 — NdOE'S yemhys Asjles
_memm;mmmmm.m_u< IN00:E g ieH uax3
A 101 wdogs - Wdoo's g leH g
JoPOPUNOS xm INd00:S — Nd0O: g IIeH Wqipa
o b0y ws_ o |  Wdoow - wdoo:e g IIeH HqIp
! W00 — WVOO0'LL g IIeH Hqux3
ooy 210800 B 10A SME | o7, — Wyoo's V OOUBAQ) JoNy
P woe_w %%_“m_ WVO00:L L — NV00:6 g lIeH uauxg
>4 WV00:Z — WY00:8 g 20WO Moys 3SVO V HLIM SMVd
o peo | wd 006 — wd 00: »0Q uebiyom
smoyg uoiysed | wd gg:z 9 wdoo:zi
uado suqux3 | wd o:p- we 00:01 V lleH HqIux3
u| peo] pueg wepo:6 ¥00Q uebiyom

000§ ‘FONVANILLY "LST

[BALY JU3ID

NOLLVIJOSSV ONIAdIm NVOIHIIN LSIM ¥ 100 'LVS

FONVINIOIAd

INJOE-0I — NdOE-L

6007 — ATIIIM




60/02/01

a-v wooljreg = d-v 11vd
|[eH 2oueuLIONad SOA3d = Ad

swooy Sunsspy s01uo =(1-V NOW
J-V YOOIAQ JaAlY = -V OY

va1y As[jep puein = DD

H-V swooy Sunss J00ldA0 = H-V O

S D-V SlieH 1quxg = D~V H3 4-V swooy Sunaspy Aisjjen puein = -V O
YOOP3AO
SUoIssag WVSL:0L — INV00:6 pue 659 ‘swooljieg
saapuaye 0} uado JuUID INd0O:¥ — NV0E'8 O lleH ¥quyx3
v
uoissag IdO Wd00:v ~ WVYOE-8 %oouaAQ Assiien) puelo
000€ -IDNVANILLY ‘1S3 | O¥ ATINO siouqiyx3 03 usadQ WYO0E-L O lleH ¥qux3 S.ATVIA
Bugesy wdoo:¢ ~ WepQ:s woospseog dIA NTIAFY 97 1J0 'NOW

INO peoT uononpoid | Wd00:9 — Wv00:0L g lleHd ¥quyx3
¥ a0yO Moys | 009 — Wv00:0L g 300 Mmoys ISNVO V HLIM SMVd
311S 440 Kued WBiN Aepung
nQ peo NdoE:8 HdAQ
moys Wd0g:8 — Nd0E9 HdAQ
Bupeag Nd00:9 HdAQ
Aqqo Wd0E'S HJAQ
s100( 3pISINO INJ00:S HdJAQ
OOUaAQ pue Assjjes
SuoISSag WNJO0ES — Wd0O-v puels ‘swooljieg
NOOUIAQ pue A19)|eD
suoIssag Wd0€g:€ — Wd00-2 puels ‘swooljieg
seaig | WdJ00:L —Nd00:ZL | SuonesoT uolssas (v
OOHaAQ pue A1g||eD
suoissaS | WJ00:L —WVO0ELL pueig ‘swooljjeg
HOOUaAQ pue Aigjjed
suoissas | WV00-LL — NVOE6 puess ‘swoaljjeg
soapuaje 0) uado Jaua)d WNd00:9 — WV00:6 D lleH uqx3
{esieayay pue uj peo INd0O0:S — WV00'8 HdAG
000€ :IDONVANILLY 153 | ¥ ATINO Siouqiyx3 oy uado V008 0 lieH ¥ax3 S.ATVIN

Bugsawy |  wdog:g — wepo:8 woospseog dIA NIIGTI
100 3AON WVO0E-T— Nd0E01 AD0Ad NOATH4A
FONVIARHOLYAd Wd0£:01 — INJOE-L
NIdO ONILLVIS Wd00:L
TINLIIT VIIIO Tid Wd00-L —INdOE9 ONILLVIS VILSTHOYO
N3dO
SMOHS T VILSAHOYO/NIJO A8801 WdST9 ALLNAL NV4 1SOO
YAA0 00S€ ‘FONVANILLY 1S3 | AV N340 S300A IdISLNO Wd00:9 Hdd 'SINISTUL SAIdVY ANVUD VIO
o dnjos |  wdpo:g — wdoo:t wooupleog dIA NIa3Y
yedaq siseno Wd00:2
wex3 |  INdSY'S - WdOE:L

600 — ATIdIM




60/02/01

9

d-v wool[[eg = d-V TTvd
|ieH dduewoiad soAd = Ad
O-V SlieH 1quyxg =

J-V Ha

swooy Sunaay 0Juo =0-V NOW

4-V YO0O[I2AQ 19A1Y = 4-V OY

va1y Assj[en puein = DD

H-V swooy Sunas| j0o[19A0 = H-V O
4-V swooy Sundd Asjen pueln = -V O

2w

[BALUE JU3ID)

IOVLS NO STLON

wepo:9

ST 11— INd00-01

Kigjieg pueig) 1sam

FOVLS NO SFLON WdSI- 1T —INd00:01
TVSAVIHIE
ONIvd ONILVAS) d00:01 —INdOO-L 4IddIY THL XOVKr
AV SINI/SNO04/NI IAON Wd00-§ — INV00-8 Hdd -ANVANOD L3TTVE SAIdVY ANVYD
LNO IAON IWVZI-INdOI
FJONVINRIOI3d NWdOI-WdSY:8
YIANNI NdSP-8-INdSY-L
NOLLVIN3S3dd NdSYL-INdL
STIVLID0D WdL-Nd9
TVSYVIHIY NdOE€-INd 1 SAAVMY iOAVIE
AV NI JAON WdI-INV00-8 g-v 1Tvd :ANOHdWAS SAIdVd ANVID
N0 PEo v wdogZi
suoissag Inoyeasg | wdgoe:ZL — wegl:LL
yeaig | wegl:i| — wepo:Li
SUOISSaS Inoyealg | WeQo:L| — Wegh:6
yealg |  wegp:s — wepes H-9 09
uoIssag [ejeue | Wepe:6 — wepo:g 40'0'8'vV99
uogessibay |  WepQ:g — Wege:L a9 woosjeg

6007 MVT INFNMAOTINT — NOSNHO! 33 TTIN

LT 100 “SsANL

600C —

TVSIVIHTY Nd00:01 — Nd00:L Y3ddId FHL HOVI
AV NI JAON Nd00:S — NV00'8 200 NOAVH4Ad :ANVJWOD LIV SAIdVI GNVID
yedaq sisang Wd00:9
wex3 WdSY'S - WdOE:L
Wo0s 0} SUERIWPY Wdstii
youn Wdl - WdZ1 V OOUAQ 1Ay
wex3 WdZl - Wve
wooy 0) Nueyiwpy pue Bay WvsL:L
BALIE SI01D0id WL SIWVXJ ONIIFANIONT
SIamo|J
f1eH ¥qup<3 dn xoid 0} esalop W00 O lleH ¥qua
no JOOPBAQ pue
PEOT UOKINPOI] PUE UOHEBUAST WdoO:v | Aisye pueis ‘swooieg
Kiojuaau)
s AlenAno peo Jouquix3 WY00:Zi — 00V 2 ifeH uqxg
YOOp3AQ pue
suoissag Wd00:¥ ~ WdSY'Z | AsiieD pues ‘swoallieg
%OopanO pue
SuoIssag NdS1:Z—WNdoo:L | Ksiles pueso ‘swoaljed
yeaig Nd00: L — Nd00:ZL SUORED0T UOISS3S |IY
%OOU3AQ pue
suoissas | Wd00:ZL — WYSHoL | Kisjied puelo ‘swooljjeg
ATATIM




60/0Z/01 swooy Sulasy 30Ju0W =0-V NOW
4-V HOOUIRAQ JoAY = 4-V O

a-v woodjieq = g-v 11vd vy Asdf[eD puein = DO
|1eH 2ouBuLIOldd SOA] = A H-V swooy Sunesiy JoolA0 = H-V O
L O-V SlleH ¥qiyxgd = O-V H3 4-V swooy unasiy Assjjen puein = -y O
AN ¥ld J33jun|oA Juspms wdpo:6
uels wesboid wdoo:L Q-Vv woouieg
J-v wooleg
uondasay wdog:9 pue Aqqo1 elyooes
wooljjeg o) uadQ siooqg wdgl:9 g-v woosjeqg
[BALLY JSSJUNIOA JUSPNIS wdpo:s
[EALY ISUO} wdoo:¢
IBALLY JU3ID : YINNIA dTHSAVIOHIS TVANNY IDITI0D NIATVD £ 'AON “$3n.L
1NO IAON INd00:8 - INd00:¥ M00Q NOA'T
FONVINEOIIAd W00+ — Wd00:T
N3dO DNILVIS NdOE 1
N3dO A9€01 WNd00:1
SMOHS € N340 S300d 3dISLNO WdOE:T1 ¥IddIY FHL NOVT
AIAO 000% -FONVANILLY "1S3 FOV.LS NO SdN NIV M NdOEZ1 — VST :ANVdWNOD 1311vd SAIdVY ANVYD I 'AON “NNS

JONVINIOIdad NJO0E:6 — INdOE:L
N3dO DNILVIS Wd00:L
N3dO Ag€01 Wdot:9

SMOHS ¢ N3dO $¥00d 3AISLNO Wd00'9 dAddId FHL YOVr
AIAO 000t ‘IONVANILLY "LS3 JOV.LS NO SdN Wivm Wd00:9 ~ NdSt'v :ANVINOD 1311VE SAIdVY ANV D 1€ 100 "1VS
JONVINIOLdTd INJO0E:6 — INJOE:L
N4dO DNILLVIS Wd00:L
N340 A8€01 Wd0E9
N3dO S400d IAISLNO Wd00:9
JOVLS NO SdN WIvm Wd00:9 - INdSt't
SMOHS ¢ OrIva vav ¥Iddrd IHL YOVr
AIAO 000 ‘FONVANILLY LS3 ONLLVIS) SNJ/NI JAON WdSY'¥ - NV00:8 -ANVANOD LITTVE SAIdVY ANVID 0€ "LO0 “1¥dd

NOISS3S dovad3dd Wd00:8 — Wd00:S V5D NOISS3S A0v4daddd 3ZNud Ly
FOVLS NO SIILON WdST-T1 - Nd00-01
TVSAVIHTY Wd00:01 —INd00:L

OnIva ON11vES) ¥3ddd JHL XOVr
SANJI/SNI0A/NI JAON Nd00:S — INV00'8 'ANVANOD 1LITTVE SAIdVY ANVID 62 "1D0 “SYNHL

IDVLS NO SFLON WdST:1T - INd00:01

TVSIVIHII
ORIva ONLLV3S) Wd00-01 - INd00:L dIddId FHL XOVIT
AV SINJ/SNI0A/NI JAONW Nd00:§ - INV00:8 Hda -ANVAWOD L3TTVE SAIdVYE ANVID 87 "1J0 “aam

6007 — AT2HIM
HOVTESOAEA



60/02/01

d-v wooljjed = -V T1vd
[eH 20UBULIOJMA] SOAS = Ad

swooy SunLslN 20IUoN =d-V NOW
-V HOOHRAQ ALY = 4-V OY

oIy A1dj[eD pueln = OO

H-V SWooy Sunss YoopaAD = H-V O

8 OV SileH 1qIyx3 = D-V HI 4-V swooy 3unsaly Assf[en puein = J-v O
AV JONVIWIOIY3d Wd00:01-INd00-8 HdAdQ -€ TVIISSVTD ANOHAWAS SAIdVY ANVID

INO-peoT uoRONPOId WdSL:LL
S8pNPUCY JUaA] WdOoOo:LL
dn-y014 0} swn}oy Jsuojy WdoE:0L
pueg/bupueq | WOO:LL — WdSZ:8
syeway buiso|) NdSZ'8
juswuepsiug | NdSZ:8 — WdSY:L

weuboid /reuug WNdSP:Z - NdOE9 BIYo09g

SWOoBM NdSZ9 ‘Q-g swooujeg
sutbog aibuiy 3 xIN | NDOL:9 — NJOE'S
|esieayay oueld mc__o:n_ Eamw“v
dn jag oueld Bugenq INdOE:E
dnjag jesol4 Nd00:L
u|-peon uoRoNpold V008

AV

[BALLY JUBID

FONVINIOSd3d

Wv00:01L

Wd00:01-Nd00:8

TIVH TV.LIOTY
HdAd

YANNIA SAAVMY FOIAYIS HLTVIH WNALDALS

NOISSVd ANV 30102
-£ TVIISSVIO ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANVYID

L AON 'LVS

If

ONLLIIN

Ad6S: 1 1-NV00:8

a-v 1ive

JONFIFINOD ONINYVIT
INIWNIOVNVIN TVANNY HLTVIH WNALDIdS

9 ‘'AON Tid

NOISSVd ANV 40102
AV dn 13s Wd6S:11-NV00'8 HdAd - TVIISSVTD ANOHINAS SAIdVI ANVID
Wd6S: 11-WV00:8 JONTIIINOD ONINAIVIT
ar dN.L3s Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 1ive LINIWIOVNVIN TVANNV HLTVIH WNALOIdS
d NOTHONNT Wd6S:11-V00:L HOD
W DNLLIIN Wd6S: 1 1-NV00:L 4022 0'd 390304 ANV ‘JOIN ‘AFHDONVH ‘HLINS
3
W dNn.L3s ANd6S:11-NV00:8 HO¥VISTA ANV NOLLVINGI 40 NvIINd $ 'AON UNHL

NOISSVd ANV JOT0D

0$T -IIONVANILLY 1S3

va

[eAly Jualin

dnjag 1o} feAwry WwaKd

weoe:9

wdoo:p-wdoo:z

Aisjjieg pues

avoo

A4 dnias Wd6S:11-NV00:8 HdAQ ‘€ TVIISSVID ANOHdWAS SAIdVd ANVID
E|
N HONNT WNd00:€-NV00:8 g-v 11vd NOTFHONNT iZLNGRLL VOMA
uoISsaS/youNT wdpo:-wesy:| | a-0 Aisjleo pueis
youm wdoo: 1 -wdpo:Z1L g-v Ai9jleo pues
uoissag wdpo:Zi-wepo:g a-v Asjieo puess
uonesnsibay -wepg:2 Asjies) pueig WNISOdWAS

FYVI ONINNLLNOD HLTVIH WNY.LI3dS

WNISOdNAS
YV ONINNLLNOD HLTVIH WNY.LD3dS

¥ 'AON “a3m

600C — AT HIM



60/02/01

@-v wooljeq = g-v 1Tvd
[IeH 92ueULIONSd SOAQ = Ad
6 OV slieH #qiyxg = D-V HA

Swooy Sund 20IUOIN =d-V NOW

4-V JOOI3AQ AN = 4-V O

a1y Al3j[eD pueln = DO

H-V swooy Sunasy Yoo[13AQ = H-V O
4-V swooy 3unasiy Assfjen pueln = 4-v O

TIVH TV.LIDZY JINOHJWAS v13a 3n0¥ID
AV JONVIWIOII3d Nd00'8 HdAd ‘T Sd0d ANOHAWAS SAIdVY ANVYD
WOOY AYOLNIANI Wd6S:11-NV00:8 a-v NOW
WOOY 1LNONVIId Wd6S:11-NV00:8 4V DO
WOOY LNoNvIIL Wd6S:11-WV00:8 3V Ou
WOOY LNOAVIUE W65 T11-INV00:8 WOOIQAVOY
LIGIHX3 NdOE:11-NVOE:L a-v 1ivd MOHS dOO4 ANV INIM ¥l 'AON "LVS

TIVH TV1IO3A JINOHJWAS V1 3d 3N0AID

AV JONVIWNRIONId Wd00-8 HdAd -C SdOd ANOHdNAS SAIdV ONVID
o). | ONILIIN WV00: 1 1-INV00:8 v9oHD ONLLIIN SHIDOVNVIA ALID
WOOY AYOLNIANI Wd6S:11-WV00:8 a-v NOW
WOOY LNOAVIYE Wd6S-11-INV00:8 4V DD
WOOY LNONVIUL WJ6S:T11-INV00:8 4-v Oy
WOOY LNOAVIYE Wd6S:11-INV00:8 WOOIMIVOd
o) | LIGIHXd Nd6S:11-IWV00:8 a-v 1ivd MOHS dOO4 NV INIM ¢1 'AON Tdd

JINOHWAS V1 3d 3N0YID

LI9IHX3

WOOY AJOLNTANI
df 13§

WOOY AYOLNIANI

Nd6S:11-NV00:8

Nd6S:11-NV00:8
Wd6S:11-WV00:8

Wd6S-11-NWV00:8

AV HdAd :C SdOd ANOHAWAS SAIdVY ANVID
WOOY AYOLNIANI Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v NOW
WOOY LNOAVIYd Nd6S:11-INV00'8 V9D
WOOY LhoNvVIId Nd6S 11-NV00:8 4-v Od
WOOY LNOXVIId Wd6S:11-INV00-8 20 02.(at. (01 4-

a-v Tivd MOHS dOO4 ANV INIM

MOHS dOOd ANV INIM

MOHS d0O4 #® INIM

Tl AON dNHL

11 AON 'dam

dSNOH N3IdO
dN.L3S

Wd00:L-Wd00:¢
Wd00:£-WNV00:8

ANd6S:11-NV00:8

WV00:CTI-INV00:8

ISNOH NIJO JIV1d SOAIA

NOLLINV SIFHD FUNLVNDIS 600T
SINIA 40 HOAVIN

NOLLONY SJFHD FANLVYNDIS 600
SANIA 4O HOYVIN

TIVH Tv.LIOTY NOISSVd ANV JOT0D

01 'AON 'S3NlL

6 'AON 'NOW

8 AON 'NNS

600 — ATdIMm



60/02/01

d-v wooljjeq = d-V 11vd
[[eH 92uURULIONId] SOAS] = Ad
0l J-V S[IeH ¥qiyx3 = J-V HY

] TONVIIOad waoee ] hang]

| owusuyoviy]

swooy Sulsa 30JUoN =(1-V NOW

d-V JOOUIAQ 1Ay = 4-V OY

a1y AI3j[en pueln = DD

H-V swiooy Sunssjy YOOUIAQ = H-V O
4-V swooy Sunsoy As|[eo pueln = 4-y O

LONIAYD WOY4 dI3N OL HONV T, S.A¥UTd YTTAL L1 'AON 'S3ANL

651 1-NV00:8 ONIATINEG ITOHM ONLLSIL WAVTV DNS 91 'AON 'NOW

TTVH TVLID3A FINOHAWAS V1 3a 3n0dID
AV FONVINIOIId Wd00:¢ HdAQ ‘T SdOd ANOHdWAS SAIdVY ANVID
N NMOMIVIL Nd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 1ivd MOHS dOO4 NV INIM S1 'AON 'NNS

600C — AToIddMm

-
2

vV A




